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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of presentation

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 23 February
2006 in preparing for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of

silicone rubber related products.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of
the Group, the Company acquired the equity interests
of entities under common control and became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising
the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in
the prospectus of the Company dated 28 May 2007

(the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock
Exchange on 8 June 2007 (the “Listing Date”).

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting
from the Reorganisation under common control.
Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 July 2007 and the
comparatives have been prepared as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the

years presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (‘HKICPA”"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group

is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group's accounting policies applied in
these financial statements and has no impact on the
profit for the year and net assets of the Group and

the Company as at the balance sheet date.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period (see Note 35).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABT3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 July 2007 comprise the Company, its

subsidiaries and interest in associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the

financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ

from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate
is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year are discussed
in Note 34.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
B R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABT3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Basis of consolidation

(i)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power
to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting
rights that presently are exercisable are taken

into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there

is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment

losses (see note 1(i)).

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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B R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB AIE)
1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 1 FESTER@
POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Basis of consolidation (continued) (d) ZEEE(#)
(i) Acquisitions from entities under (i) #FRELEH L EEE
common control 1T &

Business combinations arising from transfers of
interests in entities that are under the control
of the shareholder that controls the Group
are accounted for as if the acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of the comparative
period or, if later, at the date that common
control was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying amounts
recognised previously in the Group's controlling
shareholder’s consolidated financial statements.
The components of equity of the acquired entities
are added to the same components within the
Group equity except that any share capital of
the acquired entities is recognised as part of

share premium.

(e) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or
company has significant influence, but not control,
over its management, including participation in the

financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
financial statements under the equity method and is
initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group's share of
the associate’s net assets. The consolidated income
statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for

the year.
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B R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABT3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Associates (continued)

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to
nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case

they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Owned assets

Property, plant and equipment are stated in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see Note

1(0).

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Construction in progress represents property, plant
and equipment under construction and equipment
pending installation, and is initially recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less impairment losses (see
Note 1(i)). Cost comprises cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads. Capitalisation of
these costs ceases and the construction in progress
is transferred to property, plant and equipment when
the asset is substantially ready for its intended
use, notwithstanding any delays in the issue of the
relevant commissioning certificates by the relevant
PRC authorities.

(ii) Disposal

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised
in profit or loss on the date of retirement or

disposal.

(iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful

lives as follows:
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETSIE)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 1 FESHTHERe

POLICIES (Continued)
(f) Property, plant and equipment ) % - BERRLE®
(Continued)

(iii) #TE (%)
AEE T ENFIEERY
KR ARERERRE AR A
FHI(ANZAK B B 1& T B850
F)AREERE)RITE -

(iii) Depreciation (Continued)

Properties held for own use situated on leasehold
land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years after

the date of completion.

Estimated Estimated rate of

useful life residual value

fh =t 7 62 A fh =t R &R

F 1 BER

Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
s Kot e 104F

Leasehold improvements 5 years =
HEMHEEE 5%

Other property, plant and equipment 5 years 10%
Hih% - BB R&E 5F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost
of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
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(LB T3E)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights in
the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”). Land use
rights are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see Note 1(i)). Amortisation is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over

the respective periods of the rights.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of

a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease terms, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of
the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased
assets. Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net

lease payments made.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

Investment in securities and current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there is objective evidence of impairment.
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss

is measured as follows:

For trade and other current receivables carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting

is material.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

Property, plant and equipment;

Construction in progress;

Lease prepayments; and

- Investment in associate.

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

= Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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(LETSIE)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING 1 FESHTHERe

POLICIES (Continued)

BEERE®#)
(i) BEZEEREE)

(i) Impairment of assets (continued) (i)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset's carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals

are recognised.
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(LB T3E)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to

make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss
occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down
of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in

the period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts
(see Note 1(i)) except where the effect of discounting
would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables
are stated at cost less impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts (see Note 1(i)).
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1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

(m) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,

in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of
maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the

consolidated cash flow statement.

1
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1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(0) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the period in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees of the Group is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding increase
in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the Black-
Scholes Option Pricing model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the

probability that the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(0) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to the profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’'s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly

to retained profits).

1

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

FESFTHEX @)

(o) EE®H (=)

(i)

LR 7 5 B0 8 19 5% (45)

ARREERBRAEMELR
BENBRESE - ERNNUE
FEERNRF A FEMNER
HESELBRFEERZTS
XEAN G BEMRREREES
AR ERREENER
BeHEAFKBIEL RN
E - EHRBRAXNBESE
SR B EL SRR - LARBRATER
BERENERZB(REY
BARBBIELAENRE)
BREE|EATEEARRRK
D ERRNRB RS S
MEBEE - RSBBEEED
FETER  EEBREET
(AR & ER) LB R
REM(ERBAREZEN)
A LE e

109



110

RAFSEEFRERAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity,

in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused

tax losses and unused tax credits.

1
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Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB T3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exception, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss

or credit can be utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABT3E)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case
of deductible differences, unless it is probable that

they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets

and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient

taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution
of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay

the related dividends is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and

the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset

and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

1

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(q) Provisions and contingent

liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle

the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits

is remote.

Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards of
ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
and other sales tax and is after deduction of

any trade discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

Investment income

Investment income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as revenue in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted in arriving at the carrying amount
of the asset and consequently are recognised in

profit or loss over the useful life of the assets.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Foreign currency transactions

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"),

which is the Company’s presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in

the profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly

in a separate component of equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

1

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Foreign currency transactions
(Continued)

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
recognised in equity which relate to that operation
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on

disposal.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities, undertaken with
the prospect of gaining new scientific or technical
knowledge and understanding, is recognised in profit

or loss as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities, whereby
research findings are applied to a plan or design
for the production of new or substantially improved
products and processes, is capitalised if the product
or process is technically and commercially feasible
and the Group has sufficient resources to complete
development. Other development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred.,
Capitalised development expenditure is stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(v) Related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

(1)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy

decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common

control;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or, a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individual;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such

individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit or employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of
the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings

with the entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 2R I 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETSIE)

1 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other

segments.

Segment information is presented in respect of
the Group’s business and geographical segments.
The primary format, business segment, is based
on the Group’'s management and internal reporting

structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.
Unallocated items comprise mainly financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,

tax balances, corporate and financing expenses.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the year to acquire segment assets that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

2 TURNOVER

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sale
of silicone rubber related products. Turnover represents the
sales value of goods sold to customers net of sales tax

and value added tax.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETSIE)

2 TURNOVER (Continued)

For the year ended 31 July 2007, 55% (2006: 49%) of the

turnover were derived from the five largest customers.

3 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business segment

During the year, the Group principally operated in a single
business segment: the manufacturing and sale of silicone
rubber and related products. Accordingly, no business

segment information is presented.

Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical

location of customers.

EERHE)
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2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
$°000 $°000
Fx Tz

Turnover based on IR B D HE A &R

geographical locations

PRC (excluding Hong Kong) RE (FAERIN) 287,630 255,246
Hong Kong BB 131,038 111,314
Other Asian countries HAth To M B =R 140,535 142,475
Americas e\ 34,532 31,192
Europe BOM 36,104 39,329
629,839 579,556

An analysis of segment assets and capital expenditure by
geographical area in which the assets are located has not
been presented as the Group’s assets are substantially located
in the PRC.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B FS R Mo

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

OTHER REVENUE

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

H it 58

2007 2006

—EZtHF —ETREF

$°000 $'000

Tr Tt

Interest income from bank deposits #8771 A B Uk A 7,625 1,925

Government grant (Note) BASmEE (M) 4,882 =
Dividends from available-for-sale 2R B8 Al H E & HFH RS

securities - 197

Others HAt 774 504

13,281 2,626

Note: The Group is entitled to an one-off government grant

for its enlarged investment in a subsidiary, Huzhou Ta

Yang Electronic Technology Company Limited.

OTHER NET EXPENSES

Net exchange losses

Loss on disposal of property,

plant and equipment

PE X BB F R
HEME - BE
RRENER

Transfer from equity on disposal of & B HE A E

available-for-sale securities

Others

&SR
Hith

Hrat - AEBERKE QBN FEFR
RAERA B REANRE A BT
—E-REFPE -

H fth B 32 3 2R

2007 2006
—EZLEHF —EERF
$°000 $'000
T T

531 2,071

134 2

= 286

= 4

665 2,363

121



122

KR ERRARAT —ETLER

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

6 BRBAIEF

BR B AT A Ty R HIBR A T & 18

2007 2006
—EZLHF —ZETRF
$°000 $'000
Frx T
(a)  Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BIRA (BREEFHE
remuneration (Note 8)): (FtzE8) )
Salaries, wages and other e TEREMBER
benefits 154,029 129,258
Contributions to retirement RONTE BB
benefit schemes 5,838 2,256
Equity-settled share-based R A G E AR (D A AR
payment transactions R 5 1,421 -
161,288 131,514
(o) Finance costs: (o) BRE AN
Interest on short-term bank HHBRITERRETHE
loans and overdrafts 5,389 2,547
(c) Other items: (c) HIEE :
Amortisation of lease T E TR IR
prepayments 259 197
Auditors’ remuneration = BN £ 2,545 753
Depreciation e 20,878 15,933
Operating lease charges YIFERANKEEHEER
in respect of properties 6,879 6,625
Impairment losses on B E 5 R EEE
trade receivables 905 =
Sewage disposal expenses 58 693 489
Research and T 2% A
development costs* 2,118 1,646

Research and development costs represent staff costs

for the Group’s employees engaged in research and

development activities, which are also included in staff

costs as disclosed in note (a) above.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETSIE)

7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

INCOME STATEMENT

Annual Report 2007

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

RERBERANAES

(a)

Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents:

CEELELLLELE

2007 2006
—get®E  —TEAF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current tax - Hong Kong BIHi%i1E - FEFEH
Profits Tax
Provision for the year FANEE 2,005 3,599
Overprovision in respect BEFEBERE
of prior years (15) (10)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,990 3589
Current tax - Outside BB IE — FABEH
Hong Kong
Provision for Macau tax FRRFITHIBRE
for the year - 9,342
Overprovision in respect BEFEBERE (@)
of prior years (Note (a)) (5,200) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (5,2000 9,842
Provision for PRC F AR RS EEE
income tax for the year 2,339 5,698
Overprovision in respect BAEFEBERE (kD)
of prior years (Note (b)) (3,511) -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (1,172) 5,698
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (6,372) 15,040
Deferred tax ERER 18
Origination and reversal TR R EE R B
_of temporary differences 3,383  (2,952)
Total income tax (credit)/ Fias (E#) /FAXesE
expense (999) 15,677
Notes: HiaE -

(a)  During 2007, the management reassessed the
tax provision of the Group’s Macau branch and
considered that there was an overprovision of
income tax payable of HK$5.2 million following
discussions with the Macau tax authorities.
Accordingly, Macau tax provision made in prior
years of HK$5.2 million is written back and
credited to profit or loss.

(a) R_ZEZTLFE BEER
ENFHAEBRANRMN D
RNAIM T AR - BB P HL
BEREE BEEERA
JEFTIS T e 15 B A 1
5,200,000 ;> A It © B
& [O & £15,200,000/ TT HY
BT F R I8 B E I AT

ABa e
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

7

INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED 7
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated income
statement represents: (Continued)

(o)  Overprovision of PRC income tax expenses
credited to profit or loss during 2007 represents
the tax effect on tax benefits available to the Group
in respect of certain purchases of equipment

RERBERANAES @)

(@) ZEWRBRANBESR
?E:(,%)

(0)

RZZETLFF ABRHR
BlFi 5 %RE???Z?L%W%%EK
SERB_ZZ A FHERZ
TELFMAEBERE THE

produced in the PRC pertained for the year BUER R LA RS ES
2006 but approved in 2007, and the agreement ?jﬁm;ﬁ ok Tk
of the tax authorities on deductibility of certain BHRBERENTE -
expenses.
Reconciliation between actual tax b) ERHE(EE) BxX
(credit)/expense and accounting HiRERARRAESH
profit at applicable tax rates: FHHER :
2007 2006
—EELHF TTREF
$°000 $000
T Tt
Profit before taxation B 35t A1 A 158,590 159,800
Income tax calculated at REANE @A R & A &
rates applicable to profits HEFTENBER
in the respective tax
jurisdictions concerned 19,324 23,624
Tax effect of non-deductible AT NFEFH X KRS E
expenses 840 89
Tax effect of non-taxable TERFBMANTRIEZE
revenue (33) (144)
Overprovision in respect BEFEBERE
of prior years (8,726) (10)
Income exempted from R R BA (FzEwV)
tax (Note (v)) (13,567) (6,639)
Tax credit (Note (vi)) B (FRE(vi) (5,986) (1,243)
Tax effect of unrecognised AERMEBENT G
tax losses 7,149 -
Actual tax (credit)/expense  BEEHIE (@#E),FHxX (999) 15,677
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Notes to the Financial Statements

AR5 2R I 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETSIE)

7 INCOMETAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax
(credit)/expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), the Group
is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and BVI.

(if) Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2007 is
calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated

assessable profits for the year.

(i) Provision for Macau Complementary Tax for the
years ended 31 July 2006 and 2007 is calculated
at 12% of the estimated assessable profits for the

respective years.

In June 2006, the Group’s operations in Macau,
previously undertaken by Delvan Limited (“Delvan”),
were transferred to Ta Yang Group (Macao Commercial
Offshore) Limited (“MCQ") and thereafter Delvan
ceased to carrying on any business. MCO was
incorporated as a commercial offshore entity in Macau

and is exempt from Macau Complementary Tax.

7 REWBERANAEHR @

(b) EEHE(ER) BX
HiZBEARERGTESR
FEEER © (#)

() REFNSHEESREABRELES
(TEBRAZRE MR FE
B AEEBARMNREER
RBE BB ERPISH

i) ZZEZLFEEBNERERE
BEEMBEERT AN
17.5%(ZFZNF + 17.5%)5F

#HJE

iy BEZZZENFtA=+—8H
E—_TT+FLtA=+—AHI
FERBMMESMHAEREE
Th ¥R AE Bl 65 A9 80 fik 5 P8 AR 4 A
#912%3HH

RZTTAREANA - AEHEL
A B Delvan Limited ([Delvan])
BRERRMEBEEET AT
SEOCRMBEFEERS) AR
AR([RF®ERF]) - MDelvan
HEBKRIEEEEMER - K
FERMERMFMK Y AR E
RERIBEE  BHREHNR
PIPTIS MR o
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B FS R Mo

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABTE)

7 INCOME TAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax
(credit)/expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations

of the PRC, the companies comprising the Group

in the PRC are liable to PRC enterprise income tax

as follows:

Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Industrial
Company Limited is an approved foreign
investment product export oriented enterprise
during the years ended 31 July 2006 and
2007 and eligible to a preferential tax rate
of 12%.

Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial
Company Limited (“Dongguan Tay Yang”),
Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic Technology
Company Limited (“Huzhou Ta Yang”) and
Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial
Company Limited (“Dongguan Tai Yang”) are
foreign investment enterprises and are entitled
to tax concessions whereby the profit for the
first two financial years beginning with the first
profit-making year is exempted from income
tax in the PRC and the profit for each of the
subsequent three years is taxed at 50% of
the prevailing tax rate.

Dongguan Tay Yang is entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 24%. The first profit-making year
of Dongguan Tay Yang is 2005. Accordingly,
Dongguan Tay Yang is exempted from PRC
income tax from 1 January 2005 to 31
December 2006 and is entitled to a 50%
exemption of income tax from 1 January
2007 to 31 December 2009.

7 GZENRBERANFEHR @

ERFE(ER) BX
HEARRTEEE
FEHER (2

Hiet - (&)

(iv) BREDEMEHARMKRER
ARAEENE R ERARA
BAAR B DEAEHANT

- REAIRBRESARA
ARBE-TEATR=
TEEELA=+—AL

ERENTEAENEESY
Of%  AEA1%ER
BE

- RERFBRPHERARA
A(TR=ZF] - MK
HAETHEBRAR(H
MARFDBRERNFR
PRRARAARE
RFEDRNERE  AF
BRERR - Eit - &&
JE R 6 R 5t A {E B R
5 FE H3i A) #4544l R
BIFSH - HE=F%F
) it M) 422 58 P 9% SRR = 4
i e

- REERFZHUNNESR
TE - RERFNEEE
MNEER-ZZTRF - A
b ZARE=STREF
—A—HREZZZF
+ZA=+—BHEREH
MPEMED B 2F
tF—F—HRBE-_ZTZT
NWE+-—A=+—BH=E
BE0%HI B HR % °
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(LABTE)

7 INCOMETAXIN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between actual tax
(credit)/expense and accounting profit
at applicable tax rates: (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  (Continued)

Huzhou Ta Yang is entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 26.4%. The first profit-making year of
Huzhou Ta Yang is 2004. Accordingly, Huzhou
Ta Yang is exempted from PRC income tax
from 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2005
and is entitled to a 50% exemption of income
tax from 1 January 2006 to 31 December
2008.

Dongguan Tai Yang is entitled to a preferential
tax rate of 24% and it sustained tax losses
during the years ended 31 July 2006 and
2007 .

(v)  This represents the tax effect of income generated

from Dongguan Tay Yang and Huzhou Ta Yang

which are exempted from income tax as mentioned

above.

(vi)  This represents the tax refund for the purchase of

equipment produced in the PRC.

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

HEWRRRANAEH 2

(b) EERHBE(EE) BX
HRERABRRGESTE
FEEBR @)

Wizt - (&)

(iv)  (#&)

- WM AR FZH526.4%8 8
B < MR FH & E
BEANFEE-_ZTTNE -
Hit - MM KFE =
ME—R—REE-ZTZF
AE+TZA=1+—HHE#
REAMTFBMES - 8=
ZERF-HA—HEEZ
T NF+=ZA=+—
A i = B 50%H) FT 1S B R
@ o

- BEEAREHAURNES
BE DREE-TEA
ER_ZTELFLA=T
— B RSB
i8 -

v) ZEERZZFRAMNNFR
BEMEXAAEBEBEARG
PR AR BRI -

(vi) ZEEBETELEERBHNR
i o
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LOETSIE)
8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEM=S
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 REBEBEBERAEHE1618 K ER
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: EESMESFBOT ¢
Year ended 31 July 2007 BE-ZZLFtA=1t—HLEFE
Basic
salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement Share-based
Directors’ and other benefit Discretionary payments
fees benefits schemes bonus Sub-total (note) Total
E5ge
EER RIRER MR AER
Lk Hipga e RiEwa Nt R (HizE) st
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Fr Tr Fr it Tr Tr
Executive directors ~ ${/7EZ
Huang Chi-Wel BRI - 751 33 - 784 50 834
Huang Sheng-Shun ~ E 5 - 1,251 53 - 1,304 86 1,390
Huang Te-Wei B - 438 20 - 458 36 494
Lin Hung-Ming WA - 571 26 - 597 50 647
Wong Tek Leung &R - 585 20 45 650 43 693
Wu Ih Chen REH - 1,183 52 - 1,235 1A 1,306
Independent non- B
executive directors ~ EH{TEE
Chuang Hong-Jen ~ H&EL 25 - - - 25 - 25
Yeung Chi Tat hEE 38 - - - 38 - 38
Hsieh Yu Bl 25 - - - 25 - 25
Total @t 88 4,779 204 45 5,116 336 5,452
Year ended 31 July 2006 BE-ZZAFtA=1+—HLEFE
Executive directors ~ HTEZ
Huang Chi-Wei BRE - 737 - 4,000 4737 = 4,737
Huang Sheng-Shun &7 - 208 - 4,000 4,203 - 4,203
Huang Te-Wei B - 14 - - 14 - 141
Wong Tak Leung ~ BER - 529 18 90 637 - 637
Wu Ih Chen REH - 629 - 4,000 4,629 - 4,629
Total et - 2,289 18 12,090 14,347 = 14,347
Note: These represent the estimated value of Pre-IPO Share Hiat - WAEREBARABEREAIRTE
Options granted to the directors under the Company’s EMERAREEAERENTEE
share option scheme. The value of these share options is B> ZERERETIRIR EX (o)
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies for Fr it 75 &= B 7 A DA RR 1 7% B i B9 5 3K

share-based payment transactions as set out in note 1(0). RSMEHRRTH °
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AR5 2R I 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 ESHM AL

EMOLUMENTS
The five highest paid employees of the Group for the year HE_ZTLFLA=+—HLEFE K
ended 31 July 2007 are as follows: SERAAESTMALAT
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERREF
Directors 2= 5 4
Other individuals Hap AL - 1
5 5
The emoluments of the directors are disclosed in Note 8. EFRHFMENMESARKRE - ZFHMA
The emoluments in respect of the other individuals are as TRFBT -
follows:
2007 2006
—ETLHF e A S
$°000 $'000
Fx Tt
Salaries and other emoluments % Mo H At g7 B - 656
Discretionary bonus BB FIEAT = =
- 656
The emoluments of the individuals with the highest emoluments =P A THEBM A T LA TRE
are within the following bands:
2007 2006
—EELF ZEZREFE
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE AE

Nil = $1,000,000 T L E 1,000,000/ 7T - 1
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Notes to the Financial Statements
WS RER M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETEIE)

10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 10 XA TEREZEEH AELR

EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE A

COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders ARrEmFBEAEBEEE RN B
of the Company includes a profit of $4,058,000 (2006: ERARA T BHREKEE RGN BE
Nil) which has been dealt with in the financial statements 4,058,000 (=TT RF : THIT) °

of the Company.

11 DIVIDENDS 11 B8
Dividends payable to equity shareholders attributable to FAEMNERFEEARES
the year:
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
$°000 $000
T Tz
Interim dividends declared IR R E IR A EAR S
and paid (Note (a)) (Mﬁz a)) 80,000 219,500
Final dividend proposed after the HEBREZHRARKRE
balance sheet date of $0.06 E,’cHxO,OG‘ﬂ%E (ZETRF: T)
per share (2006: $Nil) (Note (b)) (HF&E(D)) 48,000 =
128,000 219,500
(a) The interim dividends represent dividends declared (a) HHRBEATHRKAKNASEER
and paid by certain companies now comprising the A RERK B AR 7 M B A B AT [
Group to their then shareholders before they became LERNRRS R LRAFHKRE -
subsidiaries of the Company.
(o)  The final dividend proposed after balance sheet date (o) REZEBEEZHRAKREIL RN
has not been recognised as a liability at the balance HEHERAARE -

sheet date.



131

Annual Report 2007

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS RER M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LETEIE)

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the years
presented is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company for the years and on the
assumption that 800,000,000 shares were in issue as if
the shares issued as at the date the Company became the
holding company of the Group were outstanding throughout

the entire period.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
weighted average number of shares in issue adjusted for
the potential dilutive effect caused by the share options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Note 28) assuming
that they were exercised on the grant date, 16 May 2007 .
No diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 July
2006 is presented as there were no potential dilutive shares
outstanding. Weighted average number of shares (diluted)

is as follows:

2N EFERNERERBH DRFALRRD
AERREARBGENGE  WRKXZ
800,000,000 f& 17 B 21T - HEIAAR R Al
RAREBZERAGE BETHRMDNE
ERHARIE AT ©

FREER M THIZ 2 BT B I 15
BRABRRERARE S BRESE
(HFE28) R BRERIN _-_FTZT L
FRAATAARKAETENEEREY
ZRFE  BRUBEEEBROETE
S MU BEFINBE_TTERFLA=T
—RILFESREERN - (HF)RHH
IEFHHBNT

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
Number of shares at 31 July REA=T—BHRNHEE 800,000,000 800,000,000
Effect of deemed issue RARERERTEIT
of shares under RIERITRO A E
the Company’s
share option scheme 700,292 -
Weighted average number REA=+—H8 (&%)
of shares (diluted) at 31 July & 17 B e S 39 800,700,292 800,000,000
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Notes to the Financial Statements

=+ o
Br 5 MY 5T
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBTSIE)
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 13 Y% BERRE
EQUIPMENT
The Group AEE
Furniture,
Properties fixtures
held for Motor Plant and and Leasehold
oﬁw{g ;se vehicles machinery equipment  improvements Total
SEEF )
nx e BER#E RERRR BENREE &3t
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T R i T R T
Cost: AR
At 1 August 2005 RZEZRENf—H 9,810 3,509 129,964 21,349 17,350 181,972
Exchange adjustments k] 30 34 1,264 198 162 1,668
Additions AE 7,940 587 16,667 7,255 3,859 35,193
Disposals e - - (121) (627) (625) (1373
At 31 July 2006 RISENE
tA=1-H 17,780 4130 146,664 28,175 20,746 217,485
At 1 August 2006 R-ZERENA-A 17780 4,130 146,654 28,175 20,746 217,485
Exchange adjustments i3k ] 106 124 4,308 825 568 6,021
Additions AE 4,688 610 54,641 6,840 18,667 85,346
Transfer from BROERIE
construction in (Hzk14)
progress (Note 14) ‘ 45,317 - 2,790 1,272 5119 54,498
Disposals e - - (2,606) (524) - (3,130)
At 31 July 2007 R-ZELE
tA=1-A 67,891 4,864 205,877 36,588 45,000 360,220
Accumulated ZiHHE
depreciation:
At 1 August 2005 RZZZRENA-B 1,669 2,412 48,478 12,219 18,964 78,642
Exchange adjustments A 2 23 471 m 129 736
Charge for the year EERY 283 278 10,936 2,426 2,015 15,933
Write back on HERRE
disposals - - (109) (627) (625) (1,361)
At 31 July 2008 RZETNE
+tA=t-H 1,864 2,708 59,776 14,129 16,483 93,950
At 1 August 2006 RZEENENA-B 1,854 2,708 59,776 14,129 15,483 93,950
Bxchange adjustments EiEE 8 82 1,859 415 460 2,824
Charge for the year EERY 1,269 347 13,298 3,619 2,345 20,878
Write back on 54
disposals - - (2,327) (472) - (2,799)
At 31 July 2007 R-ZELE
tA=1-A 3,131 3,137 12,606 17,691 18,288 114,853
Net book value: REFE
31 July 2007 RZFRLE
tA=1-H 64,760 1,727 183,271 18,897 26,712 245,367
31 July 2006 RIZTENE

+A=1-H 15,926 1,422 86,8/8 14,046 5,263 123,635
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AR5 2R I 5
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBTSIE)

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQ UIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of net book value of properties held for own

use is as follows:

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

13 % - BMEERRE®

FEERMENREFEIMNAT :

2007 2006
—sets TTXE
$°000 $'000
Fi Fi
Medium-term leases REIE S
- In Hong Kong - KRB 9,993 10,228
- Outside Hong Kong - FEHEI 54,767 5,698
64,760 15,926
14 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 14 HETRE
The Group
KEH
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 August WAA—HB 32,970 551
Exchange adjustments bE 5 B 990 5
Additions VNS 21,539 32,414
Transfer to property, BAME - BERZE

plant and equipment (FF5E13)

(Note 13) (54,498) -
At 31 July RtA=+—8H 1,001 32,970
The balance at 31 July 2006 mainly represents construction REZZEERFELA=T—"HHNEREER
in progress in respect of the new factory plant at Huzhou, R BUAMNFTRENERETLRE - ZBE
the PRC, which was completed during the second quarter REZZTLFE_FTHET -

of 2007.
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B FS R Mo

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LABT3E)

15 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

15 HERNTFIE

The lease prepayments represent cost of the land use rights HEENRIBEE BN R B L (R
in respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group’s SETEZE L EEERE )M T HE A
factory plants are built. The remaining period of the land ERIRGANE o ZN 55 (B £t {5 PR 48 O U RR A
use rights of the Group ranges from 37 to 49 years. RN FI7RA49FTE o

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 RHBATMNIEKRE

The Company

AT
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
$°000 $:000
Fx T+
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD  IRAKAE 104,149 =
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TRESINEEZERAEEESE BEN
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities BENNBARINES - BRIEBSAFE
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless TRIFTH A R DRI & @A -
otherwise stated.
Particulars Attributable equity interest
Place of of issued held by the Company
incorporation and paid up EBERDBRFfERAER Principal
Name of company and operation capital Directly Indirectly activities
T A L K BETR
NCES EEY HERAFHE H# M FTEEK
Ta Yang Group Limited BVI 11,930,811 shares of 100% = Investment
(“Ta Yang BVI") US$1 each holding
KEEEBERARA EBERES 11,930,811 &% REZKR

([Ta Yang BVIJ)

EfE1ZTHRD



(Continued)

Name of company

AR

Ta Yang Silicone Rubber
Industrial Company
Limited (“TYSR")

AFEYBRBIEERAR
(ITYSRJ)

China Top Investments
Limited (“China Top”)
HERERRAT
(rfal)

Ta Yang Group (Macao
Commercial Offshore)
Limited ("MCQ")

KRB (RFIBEREE
fR7%) BRAA

( [RFRFAI)

REXNFEBRRERAA
(Dongguan Ta Yang
Silicone Rubber
Industrial Company
Limited) ("Dongguan
Ta Yang")

RERFEBEm
BRAR(RERF])

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBTSIE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation
and operation
ALK
EEME

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

BE

Macau

R

PRC

Annual Report 2007

Particulars
of issued
and paid up
capital
BRTR
BRREFE

1,000,000 shares of
$1 each

1,000,0008% &A%
AE1B TR

1,000,000 shares of
$1 each

1,000,000 &%
HE1BTHORA

1 share of
MOP100,000
each

1AXE{E100,000
BATHRS

$86,000,000

86,000,000 7T

Attributable equity interest

held by the Company
EbAA AR ER

Directly Indirectly

EE G

100%

100%

= 100%

= 100%

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

16 REBRARNEE »)

Principal

activities

FTEEK

Trading of
silicone
rubber

EEVE

Investment
holding
REER

Trading of
silicone
rubber

EEVR

Manufacturing
of silicone

rubber
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16 R EBATINKRE »)

(Continued)
Particulars Attributable equity interest
Place of of issued held by the Company
incorporation and paid up EEARA R SR ER Principal
Name of company and operation capital Directly Indirectly activities
A K BRTR

ARER BEL BRERAFE B Gk TEXH

Dongguan Tay Yang PRC $5,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing
Rubber Plastic of silicone
Industrial Company rubber
Limited (“Dongguan
Tay Yang’")

REFFGEHR HE 5,000,000/ 7 BEYE
BERAR(REZF])

Dongguan Tai Yang PRC $5,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing
Rubber Plastic (note ii) of silicone
Industrial Company rubber
Limited (“Dongguan
Tal Yang")

REXFG2EM HE 5,000,000/ 7 BEYE
BRAR(RERF]) (Bf=Ein)

Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic PRC US$24,646,158 - 100% Manufacturing
Technology Company (note ifi) of silicone
Limited rubber

(‘Huzhou Ta Yang")
MINAFEF R HE 24,646,158F L HEYR
BRRB(CHMAE]) (B i)



(Continued)

Name of company

DEER

Star Epoch Trading
Limited (“Star Epoch”)

Star Epoch Trading
Limited ([ Star Epoch )

Delvan Limited
(“Delvan”)
Delvan Limited([Delvan])

Elegant Giant Holdings
Limited (“Elegant”)

ERERERATF
([EE])

(1) All entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign

owned enterprises.

(if) Registered capital of Dongguan Tai Yang is $18,000,000
of which $5,000,000 has been paid up by the Group at
31 July 2007. The outstanding amount of $13,000,000

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

Place of
incorporation
and operation
A K
EEL

BVI

RERUES

BVI

RERIES

BVI

RERUES
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars Attributable equity interest
of issued held by the Company
and paid up BEARD AR AER
capital Directly Indirectly
BRTR
BRERAFE B GiE:3
1 share of - 100%
US$1 each
TREE1E TR
10,000 shares = 100%
of US$1 each
10,0008
BREME1ETHRR
10,000 shares = 100%

of US$1 each

10,0008

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

16 REBRARINEE »)

FREEIZTHRS

will be due for contribution on 16 March 2008.

(i)  Registered capital of Huzhou Ta Yang is US$27,000,000 of
which US$24,646,158 has been paid up by the Group at
31 July 2007. The outstanding amount of US$2,353,842

will be due for contribution on 30 November 2007.

() FEEPERINERIRIEEE

B2 -

(i) FREAFH M E A R18,000,000#
JL 0 HH5000,0008 LER-_ZTF
+tELtA=ZT—BBEAEEHR - H
R B R HY #4 3813,000,0008 TTHE A =
ZENEF=R+BIHEN -

(i) HINRFEE) A & A8 /27,000,000
T 224,646,158 LER T F
+tELtA=ZT—HBEAEEHR - H
RER M #RF2,353,842F LN =
TEF+—A=FTHEHZ -

Principal

activities

FEEK

Investment
holding
REER

Investment
holding
REER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

=+ RSN
B IS 4R I 2T
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)
17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE 17 REtE QAR R R
2007 2006
—EELF —ETERF
$°000 $000
Frx T
Share of net assets f&1n & EFE 1,328 =
The associate was transferred to the Group on 18 September ZHMERARN_EERFNLATNBEET
2006 (see Note 31). AEE o (RHFEST).
(a) Particulars of the associate, which (a) ZBERARRIF LHIE
is an unlisted corporate entity, are ERE FBWwT
as follows:
Group’s
effective
Place of Particulars interest
incorporation of issued and held by a Principal
Name of company and operation paid up capital subsidiary activity
x5
1 2&fT H— XM B
RIK k&R ARKHEH
AREH R EARFE BERER TEEK
SITY Silcum & Germany 2 ordinary 50% Trading of
Ta Yang shares of silicone tiles
International Euro125,000 and electrical
GmbH (“SITY”) each switching
systems and
related items
SiTY Silcum & =6 2REBEER WBEBRER
Ta Yang 125,0008 T /Y & Bk ZHERMABEIEE
International g9

GmbH ([ SITY])



Annual Report 2007

Notes to the Financial Statements
WS R R M 5

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

17 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE (continued)

(b) Summary financial information:

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

17 REBEERTPHER »)

(b) HBERBE :

Profit
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues after tax
BE afE s Wz  BRBLEET
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt 7T T T T
2007 ZEELF
100% 100% 7,841 5,185 2,657 17,907 77
Group’s effective  A&EER)
interest E M 3,921 2,693 1,328 8,444 50

The Group does not have undertakings, legal or
constructive obligations to make payments in connection

with the associate.

REE T2 A RER N R ES

EfHAGE  EEIEEERE °

18 INVENTORIES 18 &
The Group
AEE

2007 2006
—BBLE  ZFEAE
$°000 $°000
SFoE Tz
Raw materials R 64,731 57,987
Work in progress 2K fh 26,251 8,794
Finished goods RUBK o 22,723 15,461
113,705 82,242
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LBTSIE)
18 INVENTORIES (continued) 18 F&E )
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an REATNFESEINAT :

19

expense is as follows:

2007 2006
—ETtLHF ZETRF
$°000 $'000
Fx T+
Carrying amount of inventories sold E&FEREE 410,670 350,652
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19 BEIWE 5 RN
The Group
KEE
2007 2006
—EZLEHF —ETRE
$°000 $'000
Frx T
Trade receivables: FEUWE 5 AR K ¢
— from third parties - BKRE=RH 204,045 164,219
- from an associate (Note 31(b))  — FEURESEE R B](FFEE31 (b)) 3,757 =
— from related companies — U REE R F) (M EES1 (D)
(Note 31(b)) - 12,232
207,802 176,451
All of the trade receivables (including amounts due from TRE A K E 2 R (B IR U2 A
the associate and related companies) are expected to be AN BERBRIE) R —FAYRE -

recovered within one year.
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+ 2
B 5 4R A 2
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(L EToE)
=) =
19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 19 ERE F R @)
An ageing analysis of the trade receivables (net of impairment FEWE SRR (N RERBEEE) IR
losses for bad and doubtful debts) is as follows: BROMMT :
The Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EZTLEHF —ETRF
$’°000 $'000
T Tt
Current BN HA 88,596 106,334
Within 1 to 3 months —EARE=EANR 87,235 55,197
More than 3 months but less =@AREELR+=@EA
than 12 months 31,706 14,920
More than 12 months + =&AL 265 =
207,802 176,451
Included in trade receivables are the following amounts EWE ZERRANBIE T AEEEENI
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency REEBINNEETEN S
of the entity to which they relate:
The Group
KEE
2007 2006
—ETLHF —ETREF
’000 ‘000
F T
United States dollars ETT US$21,697% T US$14,3413 7T
Euros BR 7T EUR1,867E T EURG39EI T
Taiwan dollars Atk NTD1,038% & ¥ NTD19,109%7 & #&
20 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 20 EW (R EBLBMN
SUBSIDIARIES FIE
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- FEU/ (FE 1) B B & R MO R IE S A dE 31 -

free and have no fixed terms of repayment. % B NERTEERIEME -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBTSIE)

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 RERRELEZEEY

The Group The Company
Py PO\
2007 2006 2007 2006
ZEELE “EENE ZEEtE “EENE
$°000 $000 $°000 $000
Tr T T T
Deposits with banks RITER 571,137 17,566 557,915 -
Cash at bank and in hand RIIRFERS 38,118 23,854 3,310 77
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BEEERAA
in the balance sheets BeRREEEN 609,255 41,420 561,225 77
Bank overdrafts (Note 22) RITBZ(MFE22) - (6,297)
COash and cash equivalents ~ GABRERER
in the consolidated cash ARRE kRS
flow statement ZEN 609,255 35,123

As at 31 July 2007, cash and bank balances that were
placed with banks in the PRC and included in the cash
and cash equivalents above amounted to RMB 14,853,000
(2006: RMB19,646,000). Remittance of funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange restriction imposed by the

PRC government.
Included in cash and cash equivalents are the following

amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate:

United States dollars ETT

RZEZELFELA=F+—H 5T ALMIR
@&fﬁﬁﬁﬁm’qﬁ%&r%#mﬁﬁ
BIER1T 45 88 A R 14,853,0007T(=
TRF : AR¥19,646,0007T) ° H«éﬁ@
BEE H B 78 52 A B AT 208 4 ) SN B o6 AT
PR o

RekReEEVARETIIAREER
MEEER M ERSIENSE

The Group
AEE
2007 2006
—EZLHF —EER
’000 ‘000
¥ T

US$3,503% T US$1,822% 7T
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBTSIE)

22 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 22 fRITERKEZEX

The Group
rEE
2007 2006
—EELHF —EER
$°000 $:000
Fr T
Unsecured bank overdrafts 12 ESR{E R 1 R A
repayable on demand (Note 21) RITE X (FIsE21) - 6,297
Secured bank loans repayable R—FRNEENE
within one year WHIRITE R 50,000 90,000
50,000 96,297

At 31 July 2007, the Group’s banking facilities were secured RZZEZ+LFLA=+—8 AEEHR
by a corporate guarantee provided by the Company. At 31 TRERUARRIREN A RBRIEAE
July 2006, the Group’s banking facilities were secured by HoRZZEZERFLA=FT—8 " $El
personal guarantees provided by the directors which have RIRITR AR BRESEMR —=EZ
been released in June 2007. ti/_\ﬂﬁ@f‘ﬁﬁ’ﬂf\%%f’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ 2

%

“ETLEL A=+ R XHBER
ERAR—FAEE  RITEFTREER

At 31 July 2007, the drawn down loan balance is repayable

within one year and bearing interest at a rate of HIBOR plus

0.65% per annum (2006: HIBOR plus 0.65% per annum), ﬁﬂ%ﬁé IMEFEOGSEAHE(ZZEE
which ranged from 4.6% to 5.3% (2006: 4.9% to 5.2%) N BAERITRFER S INEF E0.65
during the year. B) HANTF46EE53B(_FT X

F 4 EE52E) -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LOETSIE)

22 BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 22 fRITERKREX (2)

(Continued)

The Group has banking facilities with several banks as

follows:

AEBEHEAZMRVITHRITREENT

2007 2006
—BBLE —TTNF
$’000 $'000
Fx Fx
Banking facilities available AR ERTTRE A B8 424,939 309,119
Amounts utilised EFAREE :

Bank loans SRITER 50,000 90,000
Bills payable (Note 23) FERT R & (FiT7E23) 1,261 20,910
51,261 110,910
Banking facilities not utilised ABARIRITR AR 373,678 198,209

23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23 ERNESRAREE

The Group

REE

2007 2006
—EZELHF —EEREF
$°000 $'000
Fr Tz
Trade payables FET B SRR 44,417 26,368
Bills payable (Note 22) JERTE 55 (MizE22) 1,261 20,910
45,678 47,278

All of the trade and bills payables are expected to be settled

within one year.

BAMERNEZRARFEROEN —4F

=
RFEIS o
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23 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23

(Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables is as

follows:

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

BNEZERIRERE#

RNEBEZEAREBENRESITIT

2007 2006

—gRLE  —FEAF

$°000 $'000

Fi Fi

Due within 1 month or on demand —1& A A B HIsk iz ExkEE 16,481 19,783
Due after 1 month but within —@EA®RE=M@ARNE

3 months 25,719 24,998
Due after 3 months but within =@ A%ENEARKNEH

6 months 2,254 1,958

Due after 6 months but /N E A &8 — & N ) E
within 1 year 1,224 539
45,678 47,278

Included in trade and bills payables are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate:

United States dollars EP

RNEZEARZBEABE TIIAREE
BRI EREIIENSE -

2007
S 123
’000
Fi

US$2,178% T

US$5,7963 7T
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24 AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS

Amounts due to directors were unsecured, interest-free and

fully repaid during the year ended 31 July 2007.

25 INCOME TAX (RECOVERABLE)/

24 EREEFNE

BNEFFEARELR  RERNEE=
ZELFLA=TRIEFAZHBE -

25 REEERBRAMN(TR

PAYABLE IN THE CONSOLIDATED B), S ER BBt
BALANCE SHEET
2007 2006
—EELE —EETRF
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Provision for the year: HAR R
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BBENEH 2,005 3,699
- Macau tax - RPITHEIE - 9,342
- PRC income tax — HEFTSH 2,339 5,698
PRC income tax paid BB EH (271) (2,386)
4,073 16,253
Balance of tax provision relating HBAAFEEEN
to prior years THIB B R 46,923 45,709
50,996 61,962
Representing: &
Tax recoverable a] U =] F 1H - (296)
Tax payable JEAS B IE 50,996 62,258

50,996 61,962
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26 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 26 A4S EEAEBERAER
LIABILITIES RECOGNISED IN NEEHBEEEHEE
THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE
SHEET

REREEABRANERNETHERAE
E)/ BENEKRITS - UARBEBBERAA

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements during

the year are as follows: REBINT
The Group EE
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of Unrealised
the related profits on
depreciation inventories Total
k=l
FERHE FEH
HmERE AEREF Bzt
$'000 $000 $000
T T Tr
Deferred tax arising from: FATHIREEMEERE -
At 1 August 2005 R-EZRE\F—H 23 (1,196) (1,173)
Charged/(credited) to profit BBz EMB/
or loss FIABRR) &5 (8,007) (2,952)
At 31 July 2006 R=ZBZAF+A=1+—H 78 (4,203) (4,125)
At 1 August 2006 RZZEAFENA—H 78 (4,208) (4,125)
Charged to profit or loss BERKNE 65 3,318 3,383
At 31 July 2007 R_ZEZEt+tFtA=1+—~H 143 (885) (742)
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26 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND 26 R4S EEEBRAER
LIABILITIES RECOGNISED IN THE MIEEHREEEHE S »)
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

27

(Continued)

2007 2006
—EELHF —ETREF
$°000 $'000
Tr T
Net deferred tax assets RiZEEEBBRARERL
recognised in the BEEFHBEEFE
consolidated balance sheet (885) (4,203)
Net deferred tax liabilities RiEREERBERNERD
recognised in the REFIEB EFE
consolidated balance sheet 143 78
(742) (4,125)
EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT 27 EEERMKER
BENEFITS
The Group participates in pension schemes organised by AREB 2 MNP EEATHEBHRKSETE
the PRC government whereby the Group is required to pay Bt - AEEEED AR EE T
annual contributions at rates ranging from 14.5 per cent EEBRETERLILE : NF1465%FE22%
to 22 per cent (2006: 14.5 per cent to 20 per cent) of the (ZZTTRNF - 14.5%520%) X & E
standard wages determined by the relevant authorities in Ko

the PRC.
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27

28

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS (Continued)

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the Group and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to

the scheme vest immediately.

Save for the above schemes, the Group has no other
material obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond

the contributions.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED
PAYMENTS

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed
on 16 May 2007, the Company adopted a pre IPO share
option scheme (“the Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) whereby
the directors and 91 employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries were given the rights to subscribe for shares of
the Company, the subscription price per share pursuant to
the Pre-IPO Option Scheme is $2.20 representing a 37.1%

discount to the international offering price.

27

28

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

EBEERNKERN =

REBERBEES RS EABRTERO A
IRAR B 75 (& 1B 150 B2 FR /9 (8 B 5% 3 54 Il 1
NEeE([REEETE]) - RESET
ZIBREREETRARETE - BB LXFEA
B o RIEREESFE  AEEREESR
HEEAEEBBBAABSYE A EIEH
HE o mMEtRELAE@ESE A A 20,000
BITR LR o sTEIM SRR ELZRNEE
BFA °

B Lt st BISN - AN HEKEASN - W
EREMASNRABHOERESE

BRAGEURDAERD
E

BER-_TZLFHATRABBNRKRE
EERBR  ARARMERARAER
A BB IR M 5T 81 (T & R 2 5 & IR Al B A i
&) o Bk BRARKD R R EMK
BRAMNIEEBEERERBARQAN

B RIBEERXARERAIBRESES
IR REEE B2.2070 0 RMERBEEBITE
37.1% o
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED 28 RAZER M I #)
PAYMENTS (Continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the RZZZ+FRATA  BITEERA
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Option A & MR B S AR M AT &8 &) FT B BB AR A T R 3%
Scheme is 9,070,000 shares which were fully granted on 174 9,070,000 fx 7 - AR RIK LTH
16 May 2007. No further options would be granted under A 2% - T2 HBEE R ARERA
the Pre-IPO Option Scheme on or after the Listing Date. BARIERT EE — PR N B RE -

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed (a) AT ABARR D ERENER R

during the year are as follows, whereby all options & MABEKRESEZERENR
are settled by physical delivery of shares: NBRHEE -
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme BRAREE R ERES B TRE
have a vesting period of one to five years commencing A& 55 HA R = B AR5t /& B
from the Listing Date and the options are exercisable —ERF - IEHRATF  c AEHE
for a period of ten years. The Group has no legal or WHEAEREEREEANESER K
constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the EEBAE

option in cash.

Number of Number of

options granted options granted

Vesting conditions to directors to employees Total
RFESW RTFEEW
SEGRYT BREHAE BRESE Bt
1st anniversary of the Listing Date M H#%& —EF 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
2nd anniversary of the Listing Date EH HEIEMESE 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
3rd anniversary of the Listing Date  EWHE®=EF 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
4th anniversary of the Listing Date ~ _Em BHIEMAE 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
5th anniversary of the Listing Date =W HE®ABF 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000

2,150,000 6,920,000 9,070,000
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28 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE BASED 28 RAZER M I #)
PAYMENTS (Continued)

(o)  The number and exercise prices of share options are (o) BERENEE RITEEET :
as follows:
Exercise Number of
price options
TEE BRESAR
Granted on 16 May 2007 R-ZZELFRA+ASBERLY $2.20 9,070,000
Lapsed during the year HA A 2R3 $2.20 (135,000)
Outstanding at 31 July 2007 R-ZTZ+F+ F=+—H HKiTE $2.20 8,935,000
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) BREMNRTEMRR
The fair value of services received in return for the RELBEREMESRENATE
share options granted is measured by reference to the E2BABELEREN A FES
fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the HofiIRHBRENRFEEMER
fair value of the share options granted is measured AT Ahm—aF R | B EERX
based on the Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. PTE - BRENASNFHAEZE
The contractual life of the share option is used as an AN —ERALE - RRETENTE
input into this model. Expectation of early exercise is BMIEr AEERR -

incorporated into the valuation model.

2007

—ETLHF

Fair value at measurement date REr=2 BN ATE $1.66
Share price A&t (B 4% $3.11
Exercise price 1I1EE $2.20
Expected volatility T HR R 1@ 56.65%
Option life HE Pl 1 Y £F B 10 yearsf
Expected dividends TEERRR B 2.5%

Risk-free interest rate 45 3 B ) = (R 4R
(based on Exchange Fund Notes) INEESEF) 4.1%
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29 EXNK R

(@) The Group (a) A&H

Statutory Statutory
Share Share Capital Retained Exchange Fair value surplus public Legal
capital premium reserve profits reserve reserve reserve welfare fund reserve Total
i BAER k48R REEH EifR DTPEEE  iREHOES EREE HERE it
$000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
(Note (i) Note (i) (Note ] (Note ) (Note (v) (Note (i) (Note (i)
i i T k0 i i 1 k0 i kv
(G (W) (Hiki) (Bt ) (Mgt (Histpi) (Hikti)
At 1 August 2005 R-3EREN\R-B 208 = = 29,185 47151 (210) 5738 2810 - 263,966
Capttal njection a3 57,58 - - - - - - - - 57,386
Eichange diference BENER
on tanslaion of Phikatil g
financial satements HBBRAEL
of subsidees HESZE
outside Hong Kong - - - - 2,991 - - - - 2991
Proft or the year Efgil - - 5 144123 = = = = S 144123
Appropriaton to AERER
BSErVes - - - (6,663) - - 6,642 11 - -
Trangfer L] = - - - - - 2881 (2,881) - -
Change in far vaug of At ERE
avalable-for-sale ATEES
securiies - - - - - (76) - - - (76)
Transfer to proft orloss ERTLETY
on disposal of HERHH
avalble-for-sale iR
secuities = = = = = 26 = = = 26
Dividend declared EREEER
and paid during RAHRE
ihe year Note 11) (Hit11) - - - [219,500) - - - - - (219,500
At 31 July 2006 RIERNE
tAzt-A 59818 - - 167,156 714 - 19,261 - - 29476
At 1 August 2006 =35 ENR-B 59,818 = = 167,165 114 = 16,261 - - 29316
Captalinecton a3 182 44,149 - - - - - - - 4331
Eichange diference BELNERNIM
on tanslaion of WELTHER
financial satements FEEHELZE
of subsidiares
outside Hong Kong - - - - 11,489 - - - - 11489
Eiminaton of share capial on ~ HEBEHRE
group reorganisation HihE 60,000) - - - - - - - - (60,000)
Shares issued on group REBERR
Teorganisation BENORE 60,000 - - - - - - - - 60,000
Shares issued under BRERER
placing and LRRERS
public offering HRH 20,000 680,000 - - - - - - - 700000
Share Issuing expenses Bl - (64,204 - - - - - - - (64,204
Prof for the year EREH - - - 169,589 - - - - - 159,589
Fouity-seted shere RigsEE kA
hase finsactons BERNRS - - 1421 - - - - - - 1421
Appropriaton to AREEE
T83EIVES - - - (8,911 - - 5,862 - 49 -
Tiansfor {0 eserves SEXNEREY
for vlue of share BEmER
option lapsed B - - 1) bl = = = = = =
Dividend declared and ERBERRER
paid duing W (i)
the year (Note 11) - - - (80,000) = = = = = (80,000
A3t Juy 2007 R-2RLE
tA=1-A 80,000 639,946 1400 240,854 18,631 - 218 - 49 1,022,002
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continueq) 29 BXR K f#E 2

(b) The Company (b) A2 F]
Share Share Capital Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
R A& R 175 B BEXRRE REEA @t
$'000 $'000 $000 $000 $000
(Note (i) (Note (if))
T T Tr T Tr
(B EE() (BERE(D)
At 1 August 2005 RZZZTRF
NA—B - - - - -
Issue of shares BRI 77 - - - 77
At 31 July 2006 RZZERE
+A=+—H 77 - - - 77
At 1 August 2006 RZBERE
NA—H " = = = 7
Repurchase of BEAZ KRG
own shares (77) - - - (77)
Shares issued NS ELS,
on group BETHRH
reorganisation 60,000 44,149 - - 104,149
Shares issued under ERBERER
placing and public ARBERT
offering ol 30 20,000 680,000 = = 700,000
Share issuing expenses BRI = (64,204) = = (64,204)
Profit for the year FREF = - - 4,058 4,058
Equity—settled share RIEREE LA
based transactions R RERE
I, - - 1,421 - 1,421
Transfer to reserves HE X BB RE
for value of share f B fA i A
option lapsed X = = (21) 21 -
At 31 July 2007 R-BBLF
+A=+—H 80,000 659,945 1,400 4,079 745,424
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

(i)

Share capital

As the Reorganisation was not complete as at 31
July 2006, the share capital in the balance sheet
as at 31 July 2006 represented the aggregate
amount of paid-in capital of the companies
now comprising the Group, after elimination of

investment in subsidiaries.

Capital injection of $57,586,000 in 2006
represents shares issued by Ta Yang BVI to its
then shareholders while the capital injection of
$44,331,000 in 2007 represents proceeds from
shares allotted by Ta Yang BVI to Mitsubishi
Corporation and Shin-Etsu Polymer Co Ltd.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 23 February 2006 with an authorised
capital of 50,000 shares of US$1.00 each (“US
Shares”). Upon incorporation, 10,000 shares of
US$1.00 each were allotted, issued and fully paid.
On 25 September 20086, all the 10,000 issued
US Shares were repurchased by the Company
and following the repurchase, the authorised
but unissued share capital was cancelled. On
the same date, the authorised share capital of
the Company was changed to $390,000 divided
into 3,900,000 shares of $0.10 each and the
Company had allotted 1 nil paid share to its

then shareholder.
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(b) &XAT &)
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continuea)

(b) The Company (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Share capital (Continued)

By written resolutions of the sole shareholder
passed on 16 May 2007, the authorised share
capital of the Company was increased from
$390,000 to $2,000,000,000 by the creation
of 19,996,100,000 new shares ranking pari
passu in all respects with the then existing

issued shares.

As part of the Reorganisation of the Group, the
Company issued 600,000,000 shares to Ta
Yang BVI to acquire for the entire issued share
capital of Ta Yang BVI from its then existing

shareholders.

Immediately upon the listing of the Company's
shares on the Stock Exchange on 8 June 2007
and at 31 July 2007, 800,000,000 shares of
the Company had been issued and were fully

paid.

Share premium

In accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium account is
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of business. The share premium may also
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus

shares.

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

29 EXKRE

(b) &XAT &)

(i)

(ii)

), ENE P

R-ZZEZELtFRHA+~H"
W-—RFERBBEERER
# B ¥ 1719,996,100,000
R A2 E®EE
A& 2 390,000 Tt & 1 =
2,000,000,000/8 T * % 3
BRONEFTEHERARERE
BITHR (D B R EHAr -

EAREESHEN—BD @ &
A A% 47600,000,000% A% 9
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continuea)

(b) The Company (Continued)

(iii) Exchange reserve

(iv)

(v)

The exchange reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong which are dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies as set out in Note 1(s).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sales
securities held as at the balance sheet date,
which had been transferred to retained earnings
through reserve movement upon disposal of the

securities in March 2006.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, the
Company'’s subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC are required to appropriate 10% of
their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year
losses) as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches
50% of the registered capital. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before distribution

of a dividend to equity owners.

29 EXKRE

(b) &xAT &)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(b) The Company (Continued)

(vi) Statutory public welfare fund

Historically, the Company’'s subsidiaries
established and operated in the PRC were
required to appropriate 5% to 10% of their
after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
public welfare fund at rates determined by their
respective boards of directors as stipulated
by regulations in the PRC. The fund is non-
distributable other than in liquidation and could
only be utilised on capital items for the collective
benefit of the employees. The transfer to this
fund should be made before distribution of a

dividend to equity owners.

According to the revised Company Law of the
PRC effective 1 January 2006, appropriation to
the statutory public welfare fund is no longer
required and the balance of statutory public
welfare fund at 31 December 2005 was transferred

to statutory surplus reserve.

(vii) Legal reserves

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code,
the Company'’s subsidiary incorporated in Macau
is required to appropriate 25% of net profit to
legal reserve until the balance of the reserve
reaches 50% of respective company’s registered
capital. Legal reserve is not distributable to

shareholders.

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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29 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continuea)

(b)

The Company (Continued)
(viii)Distributable reserves

At 31 July 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was $664,024,000 (2006: Nil).

30 COMMITMENTS

(1)

(i)

Capital commitments, representing cost for purchase
of property, plant and equipment not provided for in

the financial statements were as follows:

29 EXKRE#

(b) &xAT &)

(viii) AJ 8 7K fek s

R-FELFELA=+—8
AR FARRERIZTEA
B {6 5 42 58 5664,024,0007C
(ZBEEREFE:ZT) o

30 &IiE

() RKREARUBHRERELBRROEESR
W - B KRR M ) AR AN B B AN

EWT

2007 2006

—ETLHF —ZETRF

$’000 $'000

Fx T

Contracted for =EES) 10,088 17,816
Authorised but not BEHUEBRETLY

contracted for - 2,499

10,088 20,315

The total future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

(i) WEILAHELLHERARATH
B RRFEREFRNAT :

2007 2006
—BBLE t 2 i

$°000 $°000

Fx T

Within 1 year —F RN 7,004 5315
After 1 year but within 5 years —F%EBRER 19,440 12,708
26,444 18,023
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30 COMMITMENTS (Continued)

31

The Group leases a number of properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one
to five years, with an option to renew when all terms are
renegotiated. Lease payments are usually reviewed annually
to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes

contingent rentals.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

During the years ended 31 July 2006 and 2007, the directors
are of the view that related parties of the Group include the

following companies:

Name Relationship with the Group

Link Ta Yang Effectively 560% owned by Wu
Company Limited Ih Chen, beneficial owner and
(“Link”) a director of the Company. Wu Ih

Chen ceased to be the director
and disposed of his interest in Link
to an employee of Ta Yang BVI, a
nephew of Huang Sheng-Shun, on
7 July 2006. The interest held by
that employee was subsequently
sold to an independent third party
on 1 November 2006 and Link is
not considered a related party of
the Group from 7 July 20086.

30 &EiEx)

31

AEBERBEE
HE—RDTH

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

HEHESTWE - %F
H—=hF AHEERMA

BRRATENERREENREE -

ENR—REF

ZEHERER

ER - URBRMERS -
BAAEE -

EXFERIRS

REBEZTZT X

—RALFEA -

FROBELFLAST
EERA - AEENEE

TERETIARR :

=11

Link Ta Yang
Company
Limited
(MLink])

F+tAtH REHT
B ABLNKKME = K [ATa
Yang BVI#) — % {EE (&
Sz E 5D ) s HAE
& ZEBIAHFANE
HEBR T F+
—A—BREEHR B
F=H A-ZTETRF
+ A £ B ELink ™ B #
REAEENRER -
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Name

Ta Yang Silicones of

America, LLC
(“TSAC")

SITY Silcum & Ta Yang

International
GmbH (“SITY”)

(a) Transactions

Relationship with the Group

Effectively 20% owned by Wu
In Chen and 30% owned by
Huang Sheng-Shun, directors of
the Company. Wu Ih Chen and
Huang Sheng-Shun disposed
of their interest in TSAC to two
independent third parties on 1
November 2006 and TSAC is not
considered a related party of the

Group from that day.

Before 18 September 2006, 25%
equity interest of SITY were
effectively owned by each of Wu
Ih Chen and Huang Sheng-Shun
respectively. On 18 September
2006,

equity interest was assigned to

the aggregate of 50%

the Group at nil consideration
and SIiTY became an associate

of the Group.

(i) Sales of goods to

Link
TSAC
SiTY

Link
TSAC
SITY

31 EXHEIRS

1

Ta Yang
Silicones of
America,
LLC
(ITSACI)

SITY Silcum &
Ta Yang
International
GmbH
(rsimvl)

H 7K 52 (349 B

HARAREFREAR
=ERONERKESR
20% R 30%ME &= ° B =
ZEXNFT+—HA—B
REHRREETER M E
B = H & IR
TSACHI #E# - B % B
- TSACT B ¥ & A
REBERBEE o

RZZBEZEREAA TN
HZzAl - REHAR=E
7% % B 9 Bl # BSITY
BI25%MR AN o =
ZERFAATNR -
G HE0%R AR AT
KREEBEEZETASEEH"
SITYRK 73 2 & B ) Bif &
NG

(a) RBEE
() BUTAAGHEEE R

2007 2006
—EELHF S A
$°000 $'000

F5 F7

2,504 1,284
26,639 19,9389
8,602 9,618
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
above related party transactions were conducted on normal

commercial terms and in the ordinary course of business.

(b) Balances with related parties

As at 31 July 2007, the Group had the following
pbalances with related parties:

31

ERBELIRS &)

ARBEERR  LABEZTRZTIIRE
EHFARGREAERGREPET -

(b) BAER &E&R

R-ZEZELFLA=1T—H &&
BB TIIRET A

2007 2006
—EZTLHF —EEREF
$°000 $°000
T Tt
Trade receivables: TEWE ZERH -
TSAC TSAC - 8,837
SITY SITY 3,757 3,395
Other payables: H it fE1T 5 R -
Amounts due to directors FE E B FIB - 8,647

As mentioned above, Link and TSAC are not considered
to be related party of the Group effective 7 July 2006
and 1 November 2006 respectively. Accordingly, the
palances with Link and TSAC are not included in the

above summary.

The balances with related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and expected to be recovered or paid

within one year.

BN £ XAt o Link RTSACO Bl =&
ERFLALtAR=ZEEF+—H—H
BTEWEARNEENBES - Bt - &
Link 2 TSACH) 45 R 5T A E5 o

MET AR AEER - TFE - LB
R—FAREHZ M -
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 31 EXRBEELIXRF »®
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Key management personnel
compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed

in Note 8 and certain of the highest paid employees

c) TEEEEAEHE

TEEE AN EIER EeM
RECNEARAZEERMZOMK
BENETRSHFMALHRE) N

as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: ™
2007 2006
—gBtE  —FEAS
$°000 $'000
FTx FT
Short-term employee benefits % HAE & 18 7 6,279 16,272
Contribution to retirement RIRTE A ET B R
benefit schemes 260 18
Share-based payments LAR% 1D B ERER R 458 -
6,997 16,290
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see FMNRREE A B TR I(RHMES) °
Note 6).
Guarantees from directors (d) EEFEER

At 31 July 2006, banking facilities amounted to $138.7
million of the Group were guaranteed by two directors.

The guarantees were released during the year ended

R-ZEZXE+LA=+—H WA
T = [ A% E IR #£138,700,0007T
RIRTEEER EHEERERE

31 July 2007. E_ETLFLAZ+—HILEE

MR -
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, currency and business risks

arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These

risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies

and practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables from third parties. Management has a credit
policy in place and the exposures to these credit risks
are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade receivables from third parties, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These receivables are
due within 30 to 135 days from the date of monthly
statements. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

At 31 July 2007, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk as 58% (2006: 59%) of the total trade
receivables from third parties was due from the Group'’s
five largest customers, and 28% (2006: 25%) of the
total trade receivables from third parties was due from
the Group’s largest customer.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of surplus cash and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demand.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term. The rate of interest and terms of repayment
of the bank loans and overdrafts of the Group are
disclosed in Note 22.

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32 €@MI R
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=E = b
Effective interest rates and repricing EBRFIERENEES
analysis
In respect of income-earning financial assets and HARBKENEREERTE S
interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table BMEBEME @ FTRIINBEFNE
indicates their effective interest rates at the balance BRESHTERMKIEER (&R
sheet date and the periods in which they reprice or FINERF =

the maturity dates, if earlier.

The Group AEH
2007 2006
“ERLRE ZZTREF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
ERAE EBR =
% $°000 % $000
Tr Tr
Repricing dates for assets/ BRI A g7
(liabilities) which reprice EEBHEE
before maturity (BE) WiZH
EEAH
Cash and cash equivalents ReRHLEEY 1.42% 38,118 1.39% 23,854
Short-term bank loans EEHRITER 5.18% (50,000 5.01% (90,000)
Bank overdrafts RITEX - - 16.00% (6,297)
(11,882) (72,443)
Maturity dates for liabilities REEA g fEE
which do not reprice before FEEHEE
maturity mEEA

Fixed deposits EHER 4.07% 571,137 2.00% 17,566
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
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32 €@ T Bz

(c) FMZ==Bsa)

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

The Company AAT
2007 2006
—gRLE —TTrE
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BRAI=E ERRF| %
% $°000 % $000
Fr T
Repricing dates for assets/ REE A ZFE B
(liabilities) which reprice EE/ (BE)
before maturity HEFTEE A
Cash and cash equivalent BeREEEEY 2.25% 3,310 - 77
Maturity dates for liabilities REEA g it fEE 7T
which do not reprice EEHMEE
before maturity mEEA
Fixed deposits EHES 4.07% 557,915 - =
Foreign currency risk (d) HhEE = B
The Group incurs foreign currency risk on sales and AE VAR 8 £ 75 8 T g & & A

purchases that are denominated in a currency other

than the functional currency of the operations to

which they relate.

SMERHEMNHEE RRBMES

HNEE LR o
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

A majority of sales of the Group are transacted in
United States dollars, while certain sales and majority
of the operating costs of the Group are transacted in
Renminbi, which is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving
Renminbi must take place through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions authorised to buy and
sell foreign currency. The exchange rate adopted
for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates
of exchange quoted by the People’'s Bank of China
that are determined largely by supply and demand.
Changes in exchange rate affect the Renminbi value
of sales proceeds of products and purchase costs
of raw materials that are denominated in foreign
currencies. In particular, an appreciation of Renminbi
against United States dollars may have the effect of
rendering exports from the Group in the PRC more
expensive and less competitive than products from

other countries.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. In the circumstances, management does
not expect that there will be any significant currency

risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.

32 €@ T H»)

(d) Hh& =B )

REBARIBOHEAZTHET -
AEEETHERKA D EERA
AIRAREZEE MARERAR
BMEBRINEG - IESRAREDN
SINER B EB BT EARBITX
HEREETINEERNREE
17 SNER HERAME XTI B A
RIBITAROER(ZTERMKE
E) o EXREBREINETHENE
fh 3H & T 1S R IB R A FHREE A AR
WMARKEE - ARBME - AR
AETTHENARERFERBESAE
EREPEANEHOBRRE EMBER
MERERDERBEFNBEE -

REBMRBREFRBAETHE - &£
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(e)

Commodity price risk

The Group is principally engaged in the production and
sales of silicone rubber and plastic related components.
The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of
raw materials and components which are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and demand
conditions. Fluctuations in the prices for raw materials
and components could adversely affect the Group’s
financial performance. The Group historically has not
entered into any commodity derivative instruments to

hedge the potential commodity price changes.

Concentration risk

The Group sources most main raw materials and
components from a limited group of suppliers.
Interruption or reduction of supply of these raw
materials and components could adversely affect the
Group’s financial performance. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor the stock level of raw materials
and components to ensure that it maintains sufficient
raw materials and components to meet its production
schedules and commitments to customers in the short
and longer term. Management does not expect that
there will be difficulties to obtain adequate supplies of
raw materials and components in a timely manner and
at an affordable cost. During the year ended 31 July
2007, the Group’s supplies of raw materials from the
five highest suppliers represented 39% (2006: 52%)

of the Group’s total raw materials purchases.

32 £@T A

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Continued)

(9)

Fair values

The carrying amounts of significant financial assets
and liabilities approximate to their respective fair values
as at 31 July 2007 due to the nature or short-term

maturity of these instruments.

33 ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 July 2007, the directors consider the ultimate

controlling party of the Company to be Homelink Venture

Corp., which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

This entity does not produce financial statements available

for public use.

34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors used

in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a significant

impact on the Group’s financial position and operating results.

Some of the accounting policies require the Group to apply

estimates and judgements, on matters that are inherently

uncertain. The critical accounting judgements in applying

the Group's accounting policies are described below.

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimation.

32

33 =

34
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(9) 2¥E
HREACREEHBBEEHEEBER
MHEARE Bt ZETERN =
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34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be
required for certain property, plant and equipment
of the Group, recoverable amount of the asset
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is
the greater of the net selling price and the value in
use. It is difficult to precisely estimate selling price
because quoted market prices for these assets may
not be readily available. In determining the value in
use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level
of turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group
uses all readily available information in determining an
amount that is reasonable approximation of recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items

such as turnover and operating costs.

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation of collectibility.
A considerable level of judgement is exercised by the
directors when assessing the credit worthiness and

past collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment
loss would affect the net profit in the year and in

future years,
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34 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions
and interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to

take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses
not yet used and temporary deductible differences.
As those deferred tax assets can only be recognised
to the extent that it is probable that future profit will
be available against which the unused tax credit can
be utilised, management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management's assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow

the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
goods and management experience and judgement.
Based on this review, write-down of inventories will
be made when the carrying amounts of inventories
decline below their estimated net realisable value.
Due to changes in customers’ performance, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in

this estimation.
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35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
ANNUAL ACCOUNTING YEAR
ENDED 31 JULY 2007

Up to the date of issue of the financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the accounting
year ended 31 July 2007 and which have not been adopted

in the financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial

statements:

HKFRS 7

FREM B RELERNE TR SRMIA : WE

Amendments to HKAS 1

capital disclosures

MBmERN2H : BEAKE

HEB G EAF1RAOERT

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that while the adoption
of them may result in new or amended disclosures, it is
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results

of operations and financial position.

Financial instruments: disclosures

Presentation of financial statements:

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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